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Citizenship by Investment Programme
Strategic geographic location
Free and stable economic and political climate
Modern and reliable infrastructure and advanced technology
Strong history of attracting and protecting investments
Free access to OECS labour pool of 300,000
Efficient regulatory environment
Protection of intellectual property and patents
Rich biodiversity
Location of the Future (Site Selection Magazine July 2015) 
Caribbean Country of the Future & Island Economies 
of the Future (fDi Magazine July 2015 & July 2017) 

Why Saint Lucia?

Investment
never looked better

Smart Manufacturing
Agro-processing/dairy production
‘Smart technology’ manufacturing 
Furniture  production
High fashion
Pharmaceutical products Household 
products

Production of packing materials

Niche Tourism
High-end branded hotels and 
boutique properties
Health and wellness facilities
Specialty restaurants
Art galleries
Eco lodges and environmental 
leisure parks
Animation centres
Convention/conference  centres

Infrastructure   Development
Ports, bridges, roads and highways
Health care facilities
Research  institutions/facilities
Business process outsourcing (BPO) 
and knowledge process outsourcing 
(KPO) operations
Technology and hospitality training  
institutions
Alternative energy production

Our Focus

1 (758) 457 3400    info@investstlucia.com    www.investstlucia.com
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Chairman’s message

CEO’s Review

A world class investment promotion agency 
is defined by its core values and ethical stan-
dards, and Invest Saint Lucia (ISL) is
no different...

In 2016, the Corporation undertook 
several concerted activities geared 
towards achieving, as far as possi-
ble, our set target ... 

05
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2016 investment summary
Investment remains critical in advancing 
Saint Lucia’s socioeconomic development 
in a dynamic global environment...

30
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invest saint Lucia Financials 
We have audited the accompanying 
separate financial statements of Invest 
Saint Lucia, which comprise the separate 
statement ...
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VISION

MISSION

“In 2020 ISL will be a purpose-driven, vi-
sion-focused and professional Investment 

Promotion Agency, having enabled US $1.5 
billion in direct investment, resulting in 8,000 

new jobs, over the past 5 years as well as 
significant economic linkages and substantial 

investment in health and education.”

“To advance Saint Lucia’s socio-eco-
nomic development by promoting, 
stimulating and facilitating direct 

investment while making a reasonable 
return on assets.”

CORE   VALUES   
&   ETHICAL   

STANDARDS
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CORE   VALUES   
&   ETHICAL   

STANDARDS
ISL aims to adopt a proactive, prob-
lem-solving management style, 
to inculcate within the organization a 
commitment to quality,
efficiency and effective public relations.  

As such, its philosophical position hing-
es on the following core values: 
	 •	Accountability	
	 •	Adaptability
	 •	Customer	Centricity	
	 •	Integrity
	 •	Professionalism
	 •	Teamwork
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New Strategy, 
reNewed ViSioN

Costello Michel
CHAIRMAN
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Mr. Pinkley Francis  -  ChAIrMAN of ThE BoArd of dIrECTorS of INVEST SAINT LUCIA.
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New Strategy, 
reNewed ViSioN
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A world class investment promotion agency is defined by its 
core values and ethical standards, and Invest Saint Lucia (ISL) is 
no different. We pride ourselves on having a proactive, problem-
solving approach to management that encourages commitment 
to excellence. As such, our philosophical principles are based on 
customer centricity, accountability, professionalism, integrity, 
team work and adaptability. 

Since being charged with the responsibility of Chairperson in July 
2016, I have observed how effective these values are, as it relates 
to this agency’s timely and efficient response to ensuring that 
some major investment prospects came to fruition. 

The management and staff at Invest Saint Lucia continue to 
go above and beyond the call of duty in a bid to improve our 
internal processes, policies and procedures. Related to this, are 
the significant strides we have made in solidifying relationships 
with various public and private sector entities to promote a 
coordinated “whole of government” approach to investment 
promotion and facilitation.  

We intend to take this even further as we advocate for the 
implementation of the much-touted National Investment Code, 
which we believe will create even greater synergies among 
relevant stakeholders. We anticipate that this will also assist in 
the country’s ranking from an Ease of Doing Business perspective. 
We need therefore to embrace the ‘big picture’, and in that 
regard, ISL will continue to find ways to encourage our associates 
to pool their resources and work expeditiously to induce and 
retain sustainable investments. The fact is, we will all benefit from 
investments – large or small - both in the short and long term. 
 
Moreover, we welcome the imminent establishment of the Brand 
Saint Lucia Board as we believe a joint marketing approach is long 
overdue. This will encourage greater collaboration among the 

agencies charged with promoting the island falling under that 
Board’s purview– whether as an investment, tourism or export-
ready destination. As such, Brand Saint Lucia will operationalise 
the best practice “whole of government” principles, predicated 
on the adoption of the National Investment Code. 

As I stated earlier, ISL has made significant progress with some 
major investments, some of which were stalled prior to 2016. 
The fully integrated project proposed for Vieux-Fort is one such 
investment that we anticipate will bring about multiple benefits 
not just to the underdeveloped south, but to the entire country. 
There is much to look forward to, and ISL intends to continue 
to capitalize on Saint Lucia’s natural resources and an already 
established record that lends itself to, an award-winning tourism 
destination to foster growth in new and alternative sectors. 

Over the next year, greater strategic focus will be placed on 
targeting businesses interested in expanding their Information 
and Communication Technology capabilities, particularly in the 
Business Process Outsourcing (BPO) sector. We also intend to 
encourage stronger linkages between agriculture and agro-
processing, demonstrating greater value addition and increasing 
downstream activities with the tourism sector. 

Chairman’s 
forEword 
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Pinkley  Francis 

 

BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS

Geoffrey Du Boulay

-

Jodi   Boodhoo

-

-

Paula   Valerie James

-

Mr. Pinkley Francis is the Chairman of the Board of Directors of Invest Saint Lucia.  
Mr. Francis is the owner and CEO of SIXT Car Rental St. Lucia, Europe’s fastest 
growing rental car agency, as well as Innovative Business Solutions St. Lucia Inc., a 
Technology integrator and business solutions enterprise. He is also a Director at 
Island Marine Supplies, the sole distributor for Mercury Marine in Saint Lucia. Prior 
to becoming self-employed, he spent over fifteen (15) years in the private sector, 
holding several senior managerial positions with Cable & Wireless. For a period of 
two years, Mr. Francis was the country manager for Antilles Crossing and TeleStlu-
cia, a wholesale internet service provider. 
He holds an MSc in Information Systems Management from the University of 
Sheffield and specializes in New Business Development, Telecommunications, 
Negotiations, Strategic Planning, Business Development, Project Management, and 
Change Management. 

Mrs. Paula Valerie James is the Executive Director of the Saint Lucia Manufacturers 
Association. She brings over thirty years of banking experience to ISL’s Board having 
worked in the sector both locally and regionally. She served as a member of the 
Public Service Commission for five years; Chairman of the Tax Appeal Commission 
for six years and as Coordinator of the National Volunteer Programme during the 
staging of Cricket World Cup 2007.
She is a recipient of the Saint Lucia Les Piton Medal and has also been bestowed 
with the Melvin Jones Fellowship – the highest award attainable from the Lions 
Clubs international for Dedicated Humanitarian Service. Mrs. James is dedicated 
and passionate about community service and youth development. 

Mr. Jodi Boodhoo sits as the Deputy Chairman on the Board of Invest Saint Lucia, a 
post which he has previously held.   
Jodi Boodhoo is a co-founder and Director of Business Development at AVANCE, a 
boutique deal structuring and project finance consultancy. Mr. Boodhoo is a former 
member of the Saint Lucia Tourist Board and has assisted with the development of 
the island's export development strategy. He holds a BA in Political Science, an LLB 
and LLM. Mr. Boodhoo keeps active in national service and charitable drives, and is 
passionate about development issues. 

Peter Devaux is a self-employed businessman, with interests in business, land 
and property development, whose career spans over three decades. 
He has worked in various capacities including General Manager of Bryden and 
Partners Ltd. and Executive Director of Minvielle and Chastanet (M&C) Ltd. 
Mr. Devaux is the holder of a Bachelor of Commerce (Hons) Degree from the 
University of Windsor, Ontario, Canada and currently serves as the Honorary 
Consul for the Kingdom of the Netherlands, a position he has held since 1988.

Geoffrey Du Boulay is a partner with Floissac Fleming & Associates.
He has spent his entire 12-year professional career with the firm working his 
way up from debt recovery and civil litigation. Along the way, he amassed 
tremendous experience in all aspects of civil litigation and dispute resolution. 
Mr. Du Boulay currently heads the firm's civil litigation practice but has diverse 
and wide ranging experience in corporate and commercial matters advising 
amongst others, both lenders and borrowers in complex cross-border financing 
transactions, receivers and liquidators in insolvency matters, and companies in 
joint venture agreements, mergers and acquisitions. 

Modestus  Louis 
Modestus Louis brings a wealth of knowledge in immigration/border control 
and security to Invest Saint Lucia’s Board of Directors, having spent the last 
twenty years as a law enforcement officer. This is coupled with a decade’s 
worth of practice as a security specialist with a leading business organization in 
Saint Lucia. Additionally, Mr. Louis has worked in public relations and boasts of 
a three-year stint as a radio talk-show host and customer service trainer.
However, all of this comes in a distant second to his burning desire to see Saint 
Lucia succeed and live up to its true potential. He believes strongly that a nation 
which can produce two Nobel Laureates as well as movers and shakers on the 
international scene - from the meagre resources of ‘sea water and sand’ -  is a 
nation with the ability to be a world-class leader. The desire to see this fulfilled 
is his driving force.

Ronald  James

-

Mr. Ronald James has spent the last two decades with the National Farmers and 
General Workers Co-operative Credit Union. His twenty-year career in finance, 
recently earned him the post of General Manager of the Credit Union, which 
has branches in Castries, Vieux-Fort and Bois d’Orange. 
Mr. James’ area of expertise is not limited to financial management. Through-
out his career, he has undertaken several human resource functions as well as 
risk management and marketing. 
He holds a Professional Certificate in Strategic Leadership in Credit Union 
Management from the Florida International University; a Certificate in Coopera-
tive Studies and a Diploma in Management from the University of the West 
Indies. He is currently pursuing his MBA. 

Peter Devaux
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Invest Saint Lucia is poised to meet its ‘2020 Vision Plan’ of 
being a purpose-driven, professional Investment Promotion 
Agency (IPA), enabling US $1.5 billion in direct investment. 
This bold pronouncement is based on several factors, not 
least of which is the number of major investments that ISL 
facilitated this past year.

CEO’s Review
In 2016, the Corporation undertook several concerted 
activities geared towards achieving, as far as possible, our 
set target of US $333,000,000 million in inward investments 
and generating employment in the range of 2000-3500 jobs, 
including both transient and permanent.   

While we may not have accomplished those precise numbers, 
ISL necessarily took significant steps towards doing so, by 
collaborating more closely with key government stakeholder 
agencies with a view to purposefully demonstrating the 
need to advance the country’s socio-economic development 
through the removal of bureaucratic and silo-effect barriers 
to investment fulfilment. 

MCHalE andrEw   -  CEO Of InvEst sAInt. LuCIA
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In our endeavour to streamline the investment facilitation 
process, ISL embarked on a policy advocacy campaign to educate 
relevant public and private sector agencies about the importance 
of embracing the “whole of Government” approach that is called 
for in the ISL-initiated draft Investment Code. 
The rationale behind the proposed Investment Code, stems from 
the need to streamline disjointed investment supporting policies, 
practices and legislation into a singular framework that provides 
greater clarity and predictability to the investment promotion, 
facilitation and establishment process. It is expected that the 
Code will allow potential investors and public agencies involved 
in the facilitation of investment projects, a more readily available 
reference guide for assisting their respective investment project 
implementation and investment facilitation efforts.

The purpose of the proposed Code therefore, is to establish a 
legislative framework whereby investors in Saint Lucia, both 
foreign and domestic, feel that their investment is secure, that 
it will be expeditiously facilitated and will not be subject to 
the vagaries of inarticulate policies or arbitrary decisions and 
procedures.

One of the key recommendations, as outlined in Article 49 of 
the proposed Code, requires ministries, agencies and regulatory 
authorities to ‘adopt facilitative systems in relation to investment, 
without forgoing transparency, necessary procedures and due 
diligence systems, with a view to reducing incoherence, delays, 
lack of response, and unnecessary bureaucracy to ensure the 
reasonable progression of an investment, from application to 
approval and to final establishment’. 

Moreover, this attitudinal change requires a total commitment 
to information sharing and coordination among the various 
agencies along the investment generation and facilitation 
continuum. This is one of the most critical areas identified 
for improvement, as it has long been a source of 

frustration to potential investors.
Whereas this is a work in progress, our attempts to enhance 
the investment facilitation process over the last few months, 
have thus far resulted in the realization of some significant and 
substantial projects that will in fact benefit the entire country and 
stimulate subsequent investments. 

The aforementioned notwithstanding, ISL continues to grapple 
with both internal and external challenges in relation to effectively 
fulfilling its mandate of investment promotion and business 
facilitation. However, it is anticipated that the implementation of 
the proposed Investment Code coupled with a necessary mindset 
change, will result in increased investment prospects. 

This anticipated transformation however, cannot be the sole 
pursuit of Invest Saint Lucia. Burnishing ‘Brand Saint Lucia’ will 
rely on the seamless coordination of all agencies also charged 
with the promotion of Saint Lucia as the ideal location for 
business and leisure/entertainment. As intimated in my review of 
ISL’s achievements and challenges in the 2013 Annual Report; and 
reiterated more recently by the Prime Minister, Brand Saint Lucia 
cannot be developed in isolation, and instead requires a more 
harmonized approach to marketing the island. 

In that vein, Invest Saint Lucia looks forward to collaborating 
with its associate agencies such as the Citizenship by Investment 
Program, the Saint Lucia Trade Export Promotion Agency 
(TEPA), the Saint Lucia Tourism Authority, and the Saint Lucia 
Manufacturers’ Association, as we synchronize our joint marketing 
efforts. 

“ON THE RIGHT PATH 
TO ACHIEVING
A FIVE YEAR 

VISION PLAN FOR 
SAINT LUCIA”



12    INVEST SAINT LUCIA ANNUAL REPORT 2016

Ceo’S reView CoNtiNUed...

As the agency entrusted with the responsibility of 
stimulating, promoting and facilitating investments on the 
island, ISL recorded several accomplishments during the 
period under review including:  

The Government of Saint Lucia signed a multi-billion-dollar 
Framework Agreement with Desert Star Holdings (DSH) for 
a fully integrated project which is earmarked for Vieux-
Fort. The project, dubbed the Pearl of the Caribbean, is 
expected to be carried out over a 20-25-year period. 

ISL worked more closely with the Citizenship by 
Investment Unit as it relates to assessing the proposals of 
prospective investors which forms part of the application 
and approvals process for CIP.

As part of its policy advocacy thrust and its determined 
focus on investment fulfilment, Invest Saint Lucia 
conducted several presentations to various government 
agencies; the Committee of Permanent Secretaries, as 
well as private sector entities involved directly or indirectly 
in investment facilitation, to determine the best way 
forward for streamlining and expediting the investment 
establishment process.

ISL partnered with the Brazilian Embassy as it undertook 
an ambitious Investment Mission locally; pairing up local 
exporters with potential importers out of the South 
American nation. 

Development of a Key Performance Indicator (KPI), 
performance management system. The system is tailored 
to assess performance at 3 tiers of the organization; 
senior management, management and line staff.  At each 
tier employees are rated based on their contributions 
to three key areas of performance: corporate initiatives 
or objectives, departmental performance and individual 
performance. 
 1 

2 

3

4

5
Achievements
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PROMOTED SAINT LUCIA’S INVESTMENT VALUE 

PROPOSITION AT VARIOUS EVENTS, TRADE SHOWS 

AND FORUMS THROUGH THE USE OF COLLATERAL 

MATERIAL SUCH AS SECTOR BROCHURES AND 

PROMOTIONAL VIDEOS.

Recruitment of 3 key personnel namely; Senior Manager 
Properties and Projects to provide specific focus on ISL’s 
strategic asset portfolio; Land Administration Manager 
with a specific focus on the technical components of all 
ISL’s land related matters; and Senior Human Resource 
Manager to ensure a more focused approach to the 
people aspect of the strategic business plan.

Introduction of ISL’s paperless filing system. The E filing 
system is designed to reduce cost and improve the general 
efficiency of data retrieval processes that currently obtain 
at ISL. Management foresees a significant improvement in 
ISL’s ability to provide just in time information to both its 
internal and external stakeholders.

Completed GP Group’s land title documents. 

Executed MOU with GP Group for the re-development of 
Duty Free Pointe Seraphine.

Advised and completed Supplementary Agreement with 
DSH.

Completed the relocation of all unauthorized occupiers on 
ISL lands at Augier and Sabwesha. As a result, ISL was able 
to make room for a major hotel development by the G.P 
Group and eradicate the nuisance caused to the Augier 
Combined School by the livestock and poultry farmers. 

Removal of squatters on 111 acres of land earmarked to be 
sold to the St. Lucia Electricity Services Ltd. (LUCELEC) for 
a new modular power plant. This investment will generate 
solar power and provide employment opportunities in 
construction as well as permanent jobs in the future.

Successfully conducted occupational surveys of 
non-strategic lands outside the Programme for the 
Rationalization of Unplanned Developments (PROUD).

In line with international best practice for investment 
promotion, Invest Saint Lucia relaunched its website as its 
main promotional and informational tool. The new features 
include an enhanced Content Management System (CMS) 
allowing for presenting information to investors including 
interactive maps and infographics. 

Procured investor outreach databases as part of 
investment promotion and lead generation strategy.
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Ceo’S reView CoNtiNUed...

With support by the Central Statistics Office, ISL conducted 
a household and business survey to assess the public’s 
perception of ISL and its role. 

Published a series of articles, advertisements and 
advertorials  in a variety of local, regional and international 
publications  including OECS Business Focus and Caribbean 
Tourism  Organisation.

Promoted Saint Lucia’s investment value proposition at  
 various events and forums using collateral material 
such as sector brochures and promotional videos.

Continued regional collaboration on investment 
promotion: CAIPA summits in Miami and Mexico; CAIPA 
Annual General Meeting in Curacao.

Continued regional collaboration on investment promotion 
and capacity building including JAMPRO exchanges as well 
as study tour to Dominican Republic IPA. 

Guided by its Corporate Outreach Programme, and in 
an effort to improve public relations, Invest Saint Lucia 

made the following contributions: Financial contributions 
to the Feed the Poor Ministry, Lucian Aid Foundation 
and Salvation Army towards their annual Christmas food 
drive;  Annual contribution to the National Community 
Foundation as part of its education fund; Corporate 
sponsorship of St Lucia Medical and Dental Association 
Give a Heart Foundation, St Lucia Amateur Swimmers 
Association Good Will Games; Caribbean Institute of 
Certified Management Consultants, and UWI Giving Week.

Invest Saint Lucia instituted an effective expenditure 
control mechanism which has resulted in expenditure 
reduction in most categories, while at the same time 
recording increases in revenue (mostly factory shell leases 
and new DFPS tenants).

A more aggressive approach towards sustained reduction 
in receivables which has significantly reduced the trade 
receivables this year. 

Assisted several factory shell tenants with refurbishment. 

Facilitated several businesses through expansions, and the 
sale of one shell. 

Introduction of a retail outlet at DFPS for Antillia Brewery 
for sale of their award-winning craft beer.
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Increase in ISL communication programs and strategy 

to build and improve public awareness on the role and 

mandate of ISL, achievements and overall improvement 

in public perception.

Completed the construction of a new through road at Duty 
Free Pointe Seraphine (DFPS) which will assist with the 
traffic congestion accruing on cruise ship days.  The new 
road will also assist with the seamless dispatch of land 
based tours.

Facilitated numerous tenant renovations of stores at DFPS.

Expanded the CCTV security camera system for increased 
security.

Officially opened a new restaurant and bar – Pink Papaya – 
at DFPS.

Officially launched a social media marketing program 
highlighting the variety of products and services available 
at DFPS.

Welcomed one new store to the offering at DFPS.

ISL executed a companywide Wellness Retreat where 
members of staff were encouraged to engage in healthy 
lifestyle behaviours. Management is of the opinion, that a 
healthy team is a productive team.

Despite having made some headway in sensitizing agencies 
involved in the investment facilitation continuum about 
the importance of their roles in expediting investments 
and approvals, the protracted length of time required to 
facilitate business establishment in Saint Lucia remains a 
major drawback for ISL. Thus, the ‘whole of government 
approach’ and Policy Advocacy remains a priority.

Facilitation challenges such as working hours and the 
retrieval of critical and historical information from the DCA 
and Land Registry.

Delays in the High Court Registry.

Issues of unauthorized development and occupation. 
Less than optimal information flows, particularly in respect 
of investment data, and tracking investment flows and jobs 
created. 

Management of the receivables portfolio continues to 
be a major challenge for Invest Saint Lucia while it tries 
to establish a common ground between its sustainability, 
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The transfer of non-strategic land assets to a new entity that 
will provide the opportunity to manage strategic lands and 
concentrate on investments.

Fast tracking of digital efforts to empower staff, and optimise 
operations, resulting in a transformation of the services and 
engagement offered to our clients. 

The pursuit and effectiveness of policy advocacy, and the ‘whole 
of government approach’ remains critical.  

Improvements in ISL’s service delivery, investment facilitation 
and aftercare.

Improvements in information flows, data collection and 
investment tracking.

Increase in ISL communication programs and strategy to build 
and improve public awareness on the role and mandate of ISL, 
achievements and overall improvement in public perception.

The provision of relevant feedback on budget and past 
performance, to all Managers and the Board of Directors 
monthly, to ensure informed discussions are made at all levels.

Cost control measures will be maintained and revised as 
necessary, while at the same time, ensuring that DPFS is fully 
tenanted and that there is increased occupancy of factory shells.

corporate social responsibility and its political directives.  
Notwithstanding, ISL continues to work closely with its 
tenants to reduce their receivables.

Unauthorized solicitation at DFPS remains a concern 
for management.  Steps have been taken to bolster the 
security function to attend to this concern.

Outlook

Achievement of direct investment goals will rely heavily on 
Saint Lucia’s ability to implement the agreements that have 
already been signed with investors

A more focused approach on the HR element of the 
Strategic Business Plan.

The procurement of an HRIS system to improve the quality 
of employee records as well as the general administrative 
support that HR currently provides. The system would also 
complement ISL’s current thrust to have a paperless filing 
system. 

A further improved Performance Management system that 
will more accurately evaluate performance at all levels.

Implementation of law reform proposals such as the 
Investment Code, ISL Act and Incentives legislation.

Joint venture initiatives to develop land to build on the 
success of the Black Bay Garden initiatives.

Upgrade and Improvement in GIS systems and software to 
manipulate spatial data.

Ceo’S reView CoNtiNUed...

47

48

49

50

51

52

54

55

46

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

16    INVEST SAINT LUCIA ANNUAL REPORT 2016



INVEST SAINT LUCIA ANNUAL REPORT 2016   17 



MaNageMeNt 
teaM

Economist McHale Andrew joined Invest Saint Lucia as CEO in May 2012. The former 
Executive Vice President of the Saint Lucia Hotel and Tourism Association (SLHTA) has also 
served the Caribbean Tourism Organisation (CTO) as Research and Development Adviser; 
Saint Lucia’s Ministry of Tourism and Civil Aviation as Permanent Secretary; and the Eastern 
Caribbean Central Bank (ECCB) for some ten (10) years, first as an adviser to the Governor 
and then as Director of External Relations. Prior to this he held a five-year stint as an 
economist within the Ministry of Finance in Saint Lucia.

Mr. Andrew holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Economics & Law from the University of the West 
Indies and a Master’s Degree in Economics, Law & Policy-Making from the London School 
of Economics (LSE).  He has gained over 25 years of public and private sector working 
experience in the Caribbean in economic, tourism and investment policy, sustainable 
development, international trade, project management and business planning. He has 
written extensively on developmental policy and is also an elected partner of the Caribbean 
Natural Resources Institute (CANARI).

Nicole DuBoulay joined Invest Saint Lucia in November 2016, as the Senior Manager, Human 
Resources. A Certified Human Resource Leader (CHRL) through the Human Resources 
Professionals Association of Ontario Canada, she has twelve years of senior level Human 
Resource Management experience.  Her last four years were spent developing and 
executing the Human Resources (HR) Strategy for one of the leading utility companies in the 
Caribbean. 

Key HR initiatives under her purview include Restructuring, Talent Management (including 
Performance Management), Employee Engagement, Leadership Development and Culture 
Change.   

She holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Psychology from York University in Canada, and two 
Masters Degrees in Business Administration (McMaster University, Canada) and Training 
& Performance Management (University of Leicester, United Kingdom). Nicole is also a 
member of the Society for Human Resource Management (SHRM) in the United States. 

mchale Andrew

Nicole duBoulay

MAnAgEMEntTEAM
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Jeremiah Edward is the Senior Manager Finance and Administration. He joined Invest 
Saint Lucia in August of 2000 as an Accounts Officer, and has since succeeded up the 
ranks. 

He possesses a wealth of experience in the field of Finance and Accounting. Prior to 
his sixteen-year tenure with Invest Saint Lucia, Mr. Edward worked as an insurance 
agent. 

Jeremiah Edward

Lancelot Arnold is the Senior Manager, Properties and Projects. He is an accomplished 
manager with over fifteen years’ experience in project management, development 
and property management. He has been pivotal in the project management team 
for the creation and refurbishment of first class commercial properties in Saint Lucia 
such as the Audi Building, La Place Carenage Shopping Center and the JQ Rodney Bay 
Mall. He is a driven leader with an exceptional track record of leading various sized 
multidiscipline teams such as the National Insurance Property Development and 
Management Company.           

Lancelot Arnold

samantha Charles
Samantha Charles is the new Legal Counsel/Corporate Secretary at Invest Saint Lucia.  
Samantha brings to the post twelve years of experience in private and public law.  
Most recently she held the post of Legal Officer IV with the Public and Teaching Service 
Commission.  

Samantha is the holder of a Master of Laws in Legislative Drafting with distinction, as 
well as a Bachelor of Science in International Relations and Management Studies from 
the University of the West Indies. She undertook her legal training in England, where 
she was called to the Bar of England and Wales in 2004.  She was called to the bar in 
Saint Lucia later that same year.
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Alana Lansiquot-Brice began her stint as Investment Promotion & Fulfilment Manager 
in January 2015. In this role, she is responsible for all investment promotion and 
facilitation efforts of the organization. Employed with Invest Saint Lucia since April 
2010 as an Investment Officer, she has been promoted twice during this seven-year 
tenure.  She is an accomplished professional with experience in the areas of finance, 
accounting, law, sales and project analysis. 

Mrs. Brice possesses a Bachelor’s Degree in Business Administration and a Master’s 
Degree in International Business.

Alana Lansiquot-Brice

Lyndon Samuel is the Information Systems Advisor at Invest Saint Lucia. He is Microsoft 
Certified and has headed the Information Technology Department since 2004. A 
Graduate of Saint Mary’s University with a Bachelor of Science and Diploma in 
Engineering, he brings over ten years of experience in Information Technology.
 
He also has in-depth expertise in Microsoft Enterprise platforms including Windows 
Server, Exchange Server, SQL Server and SharePoint that he has used to implement 
people-focused solutions to employees and partners; increasing their engagement; and 
allowing them to deliver maximum productivity.

Lyndon Samuel

MAnAgEMEntTEAM
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dawn Lambert
Dawn Lambert is the Operations Manager of Duty Free Pointe Seraphine, a subsidiary 
of Invest Saint Lucia. Ms. Lambert joined team ISL in September of 2010 after spending 
thirteen years in the private sector serving as an Executive Secretary and later Office 
Manager. After serving with an exemplary record in the post of Executive Assistant 
to the CEO, she was promoted to the position of Human Resource Officer in 2012, 
and again moved up the ranks in 2015 to her current position. She is the holder of a 
Graduate Diploma in Human Resource Management from the University of Wales and 
a Master’s Degree in Business Administration from the University of Leicester.

Mr. David Desir currently holds the post of Land Administration Manager with 
Invest Saint Lucia. He served previously as Deputy Chief Physical Planner and Acting 
Commissioner of Crown Lands in the Ministry of Physical Development, Housing 
and Urban Renewal. In the year 2000, he obtained a Bachelor of Science Degree 
in Horticulture and Soil Science from the Alabama Agricultural and Mechanical 
University graduating with first class honors. He was awarded the International 
Student Scholarship to pursue the Professional Master of Arts Degree in Urban and 
Regional Planning specializing in Land Use Planning which he earned in 2003. He 
currently serves his country on numerous Boards and Organizations including, Vice 
President of the Saint Lucia Justice of the Peace Association, Public Relations Officer 
of the Saint Lucia Institute of Land Use Planners, and member of the Ministers Task 
Force responsible for reviewing planning standards in Saint Lucia. His involvement 
in community work is outstanding serving as a Justice of the Peace, President of the 
Babonneau Parish Council and Public Relations Officer of the Babonneau Youth and 
Sports Council.   
     

david desir

Natasha Edwin-Walcott joined Invest Saint Lucia in June 2015 as the Research, Policy 
Advocacy and Communications Manager. 

Prior to this, Natasha worked as a Diplomat on behalf of OECS Governments within the 
OECS Geneva Switzerland Trade Mission, advancing, negotiating and safeguarding OECS 
interests on Trade and Development issues at the World Trade Organisation, the United 
Nations Conference on Trade and Development, and the World Intellectual Property 
Organisation. Her seven-year stint at the Mission saw her defend the interests of the 
African, Caribbean and Pacific Countries (ACP) and Small Vulnerable Economies (SVE) 
on several trade and development issues.

Mrs. Edwin-Walcott holds a BA (Hons) in Politics and International Relations, and an MA 
in Globalisation, Development and Transition, both from the University of Westminster 
UK. She is currently pursuing an MSc in International Management from the University 
of Liverpool UK.

Natasha Edwin-walcott
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sector 
Capital 

Expenditure 
$Us millions 

Capital 
Expenditure 
EC$ millions

Jobs Created

Transient Permanent Total 
Jobs

TOURISM 127,060,652 343,063,760 1,875 271 2,146
INFRASTRUCTURE 5,970,000 16,119,000 80 149 229
MANUFACTURING 12,397,000 33,471,900 71 72 143
COMMERCIAL 23,044,779 62,220,903 491 67 558

TOTAL 168,472,431 454,875,564 2517 559 3076

Table 1.1: Total Direct Investment

Source: Invest Saint Lucia Annual Investor Survey 2016

Source: Invest Saint Lucia Annual Investor Survey 2016

0 500 1000 1500 2000 2500 3000 3500

Total Jobs Created

Permanent Jobs

Temporary Jobs

N
o.

 o
f J

ob
s

22    INVEST SAINT LUCIA ANNUAL REPORT 2015

2016 
InvEstMEnt 
SuMMAry

1.0  Introduction
Investment remains critical in advancing Saint Lucia’s socio-
economic development in a dynamic global environment.  For this 
reason, Invest Saint Lucia continues to play a central role in driving 
direct investment flows into the economy.  Several investment 
projects made significant contribution to total direct investment 
as well as the creation of new jobs.

This report will provide a review of total direct investment, as well 
as the FDI trend in Saint Lucia over the last ten years. In addition, 
the report will highlight the major investment projects that 
contributed to the investment flows for the 2016 review period. 

1.1 Total Direct Investment
The total direct investment into Saint Lucia reported for 2016 
totaled US$ 168,472,431. A total of 3,076 new jobs were created 
as a result of the capital expenditure from the investment 
projects, of which 559 were permanent jobs, while the remaining 
2,517 were transient jobs created during the construction phase.
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Figures 1.2 and 1.3 demonstrate the above.

Source: Invest Saint Lucia Annual Investor Survey 2016
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1.2 Sector Contribution
The tourism sector led capital expenditure (CAPEX), accounting 
for 75% of total CAPEX, while creating a total of 2,146 jobs in 
2016, representative of 70% of total employment.  

The commercial sector was the second largest contributor, 
accounting for 14% of the total CAPEX, contributing to 18% or 558 
of the total jobs.

The manufacturing sector was the third largest contributor to 
direct investments, accounting for 7% of the CAPEX.  A total of 
143 jobs were created representing 5% of total jobs.

Direct investments include foreign direct investment (FDI) and 
domestic investment.

Figure 1.2: Capital Expenditure Sector Contribution

Tourism          Infrastructure           Commercial             Manufacturing

7%

14%
4%

75%

Figure 1.3: Job Creation by Sector

Source: Invest Saint Lucia Annual Investor Survey 2016
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The investment flows were derived from some major projects, 
namely the Royalton St. Lucia Resort & Spa, the Harbor Club, 
Unicomer and Coconut Bay, which contributed 65% of total direct 
investment flows into Saint Lucia. Furthermore, these investments 
and project expansions contributed significantly towards job 
creation for locals.

The Royalton St Lucia Resort & Spa is a luxury resort providing 
an additional 453 rooms to Saint Lucia’s accommodation stock, 
featuring eight restaurants, six bars, a world class spa, an onsite 
splash park and conference space. This project commenced in 
2015 and commenced operations in February 2017, less than 2 
years after construction. 

The Harbor Club hotel is on stream to open in September 2017. 
It will complement Saint Lucia’s growing room stock with an 
additional 115 hotel rooms, along with several amenities that 
will enhance the clientele experience with two world class 
restaurants, fitness center, a full-service spa, lounge club, Scubar 
club, a pool club and state of the art technology with conference 
space, accommodating three meeting rooms. This is the second 
phase of the parent company’s (Sunrod Properties) business 
establishment project in Saint Lucia, the first being the universal 
Dive Centre near the hotel site, which opened in December 2014.

Unicomer Saint Lucia in its expansion strategy, opened doors to 
its Courts Mega store in Marisule Gros-Islet, in the last quarter 
of 2016. This investment covers more than 1,800 square meters 
of sales space, as well as a full service optical store and regional 
administrative offices.

The newest addition to Coconut Bay Beach Resort & Spa is the 
new 36 plunge pool suites – Serenity at Coconut Bay- an all-
inclusive luxury suite adult-only resort, accompanied by 24-hour 
room service, butler service and more. This expansion is due to 
open in the first half of 2017.

2016 
InvEstMEnt 
SuMMAry
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Figure 1.3: FDI Trend 2005-2016  
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Source: ECCB; Invest Saint Lucia; Social & Economic Review (2005- 2016)
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1.3 Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) Inflows
Initial reports showed that FDI totaled US$ 130,406,143 in 2016, a 2.4% increase 
from the previous year - see figure 1.3. Much of the foreign investment was 
concentrated in the tourism sector, accounting for more than 50% of FDI inflows 
into Saint Lucia, followed by the manufacturing sector. The FDI flows accounted 
for 77% of the direct investment flows into Saint Lucia as shown in Figure 1.4.

Source: ECCB; Invest Saint Lucia; Social & Economic Review (2016)

Figure 1.4: Direct Investment Distribution

2016 
InvEstMEnt 
SuMMAry
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1.4 Conclusion
The investment summary provides a clear overview of direct 
investment flows reported for the period under review. 
The tourism sector remains the main contributor to direct 
investment as well as employment generation. This sector 
created most of the jobs relative to the other key sectors. A total 
of 3,076 new jobs were reported of which 559 were permanent 
jobs, while the remaining 2,517 were temporary jobs during 
construction. 

It is expected that direct investment will continue an upward 
progression from the ongoing projects, as well as the pipeline 
projects planned for 2017 and beyond. Some of these projects 
include:

  • Pearl of the Caribbean-Desert Star Holding (DSH) fully 
  integrated project for Vieux-Fort which comprises a 
  racetrack, hotel, marina and casino.

 • Sun Set Bay Resort (GP Group) has proposed a hotel 
  resort development in Portalese, Choiseul.

 • Range Development proposes a five-star resort   
  development earmarked for Black Bay Vieux Fort.

 • A four-five-star hotel development proposed for   
  Canelles, Micoud. 

 • A pasta processing facility anticipated for Massade,   
  Gros Islet.

Investor confidence is on an upward trajectory manifested 
by the ongoing interest in Saint Lucia as an ideal location for 
investment. Invest Saint Lucia will therefore, as per its mandate, 
continue to promote, facilitate and guide investors during and 
post establishment, to ensure that investment targets are met 
for the ultimate socio-economic advancement of Saint Lucia.
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Duty Free Pointe Seraphine Shopping Complex is conveniently located within walking distance 
of the city of Castries. Our shops are opened from 9:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. Mondays – Fridays 
and 9:00 a.m. – 2:30 p.m. on Saturdays. Shopping hours are extended during the cruise ship 

season and on special occasions, for added shopping convenience. Do remember to bring along 
your Airline Ticket and Passport so that you can take advantage of the duty free bargains available. 

For more information visit www.dutyfreepointeseraphine.com
like us on facebook.com/dutyfreepointeseraphineshoppingcomplex
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PKF Professional service

Tel. (758) 453-2340
Tel. (758) 450-7777
Fax. (758) 451-3079
Email. admin@pkf.lc

iNdEPENdENT AUdiTOR’s REPORT

To the Board of Directors of Invest Saint Lucia

Report on the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Invest Saint Lucia, which comprise the separate statement of financial position 
as at December 31, 2016, and the separate statement of changes in equity, separate statement of surplus or deficit and other 
comprehensive income, and separate statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Invest 
Saint Lucia as of December 31, 2016, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs).  Our responsibilities under those standards 
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.  We are 
independent of Invest Saint Lucia in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics 
for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements in St. Lucia, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA 
Code.  We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for the opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with IFRSs, and for 
such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the separate financial statements, management is responsible for assessing Invest Saint Lucia ability to continue as a 
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate Invest Saint Lucia or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing Invest Saint Lucia financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.  
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.  Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these financial statements
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As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the 
audit.  We also:
 • Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the  financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and 
  perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
  a basis for our opinion.  The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
  resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of   
  internal control.
 
 • Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
  the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Invest Saint Lucia’s internal   
  control.
 
 • Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related   
  disclosures made by management. 

 • Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit 
  evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on 
  Invest Saint Lucia’s ability to continue as a going concern.  If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 
  to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are i
  nadequate, to modify our opinion.  Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s 
  report.  However, future events or conditions may cause Invest Saint Lucia to cease to continue as a going concern.

 • Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether 
  the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 
  
 We communicated with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identified during our audit.
The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is J. Wendell Skeete.

Chartered Accountants
Castries, Saint Lucia
May 30, 2017
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December 31, 2016 December 31, 2015
Notes $ $

Assets 
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5 2,070,184 1,567,490
Trade and other receivables 6 1,478,909 14,159,770
Investment securities: loans and receivables 8 16,736,570 19,305,665

20,285,663 35,032,925
Non-current assets

Non-current receivables 6 794,587 1,105,008
Land developments 7 11,754,797 12,830,106
Land for sale 15,731,517 16,044,001
Investment securities: loans and receivables 8 6,400,000 1,600,000
Investment securities: available-for-sale 8 910,860 931,860
Investment in subsidiaries 9 1 1
Property, plant and equipment 11 2,196,144 2,297,141
Investment properties 12 30,186,225 29,543,141

67,974,131 64,351,258
Total assets 88,259,794 99,384,183

 Liabilities and Equity Current liabilities
Borrowings 13 378,696 12,870,823
Trade and other payables 14 2,610,028 2,572,052
Provision for future development costs 15 937,177 2,172,754
Deferred revenue 16 937,635 490,946

4,863,536 18,106,575
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 13 4,624,554 5,002,216
Provision for future development costs 15 2,976,668 2,976,669
Deferred revenue 16 2,346,708 2,808,206
Due to subsidiary 17 313,454 266,739

10,261,384 11,053,830
Total liabilities 15,124,920 29,160,405
Equity
Contributed capital 18 37,064,173 37,017,476
Fair value reserve  (441,000)  (420,000)
Accumulated surplus 36,511,701 33,626,302

73,134,874 70,223,778
Total liabilities and equity 88,259,794 99,384,183

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

INVEST SAINT LUCIA
Separate Statement of Financial Position
As at December 31, 2016 
(Expressed in Eastern Caribbean Dollars)

SIGNED ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

___________________________________ Director ___________________________________ Director



INVEST SAINT LUCIA ANNUAL REPORT 2016   33 

INVEST SAINT LUCIA
Separate Statement of Financial Position
As at December 31, 2016 
(Expressed in Eastern Caribbean Dollars)

Nine month
period ended

December December 
31, 2016 31, 2015

Notes $ $
Contributed capital
At beginning of year/period  37,017,476  37,017,476 
Additional capital contributed  46,697  - 

At end of year/period 18  37,064,173  37,017,476 

Fair value reserve
At beginning of year/period  (420,000)  (390,000)
Fair value loss on available-for-sale assets 8  (21,000)  (30,000)

At end of year/period  (441,000)  (420,000)

Accumulated surplus
At beginning of year/period  33,626,302  30,676,666 
Repayment of surplus 19  (5,021,730)  - 
Surplus for the year/period  7,907,129  2,949,636 

At end of year/period  36,511,701  33,626,302 

Equity, end of year/period  73,134,874  70,223,778 

INVEST SAINT LUCIA
Separate Statement of Changes in Equity 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016 
With Comparatives 
For the Nine Month Period Ended December 31, 2015
(Expressed in Eastern Caribbean Dollars)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.



34    INVEST SAINT LUCIA ANNUAL REPORT 2016

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Nine month
period ended

December December
31, 2016 31, 2015

Notes $ $

Revenue 22 14,624,209 8,354,608

Direct costs 22  (6,129,273)  (4,579,774)

Departmental operating profit 8,494,936 3,774,834

General and administrative expenses 23  (3,340,970)  (2,631,711)

Other income - net 25 2,901,109 1,904,888

Operating surplus 8,055,075 3,048,011

Finance cost - net 26  (147,946)  (98,375)

Surplus for the year/period 7,907,129 2,949,636

Other comprehensive loss
Items that will be reclassified to surplus or deficit:
Fair value loss on available-for-sale financial assets 8  (21,000)  (30,000)

Comprehensive income for the year/period 7,886,129 2,919,636

INVEST SAINT LUCIA
Separate Statement of Surplus or Deficit and Other 
Comprehensive Income
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016 
With Comparatives 
For the Nine Month Period Ended December 31, 2015
(Expressed in Eastern Caribbean Dollars)
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The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Nine month

period ended
December December 

31, 2016 31, 2015

Notes $ $

Cash flows from operating activities

Surplus for the year/period  7,907,129  2,949,636 

Adjustments for:

Dividend income 25  (1,383,125)  (1,420,209)

Interest income 25  (664,210)  (509,213)

Depreciation 11,12  1,120,026  856,946 

Impairment of trade and other receivables  -  29,391 

Interest expense 26  156,306  122,628 

(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 25  (52,266)  97,660 

Operating surplus before working capital changes  7,083,860  2,126,839 

Decrease in trade and other receivables  12,740,083  1,558,450 

Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables  37,976  (100,779)

Decrease in provision for future development costs  (1,235,578)  (1,521,398)

Decrease in land developments cost  1,075,309  1,208,875 

Decrease in land for sale  312,484  9,516 

(Decrease)/increase in deferred revenue  (14,808)  313,651 

Increase in due to subsidiary  46,715  - 

Cash generated from operations  20,046,041  3,595,154 

Interest paid  (156,306)  (122,628)

Net cash generated from operating activities  19,889,735  3,472,526 

Cash flows from investing activities

Dividend income received  1,609,125  644,209 

Interest income received  689,408  557,765 

Purchases of investment properties 12  (1,580,337)  (483,361)

Purchases of property, plant and equipment 11  (179,510)  (103,555)

Purchases of investment securities: loans and receivables  (26,886,570)  (19,305,664)

Proceeds from property, plant and equipment  150,000  687 

Proceeds from redemption of investment securities: loans and receivables  24,655,665  14,096,513 

Net cash used in investing activities  (1,542,219)  (4,593,406)

Cash flows from financing activities

Repayment of borrowings  (12,869,789)  (2,682,131)

Increase in contributed capital  46,697  - 

Repayment of surplus  (5,021,730)  - 

Net cash used in financing activities  (17,844,822)  (2,682,131)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  502,694  (3,803,011)

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year/period 5  1,567,490  5,370,501 

Cash and cash equivalents - end of year/period 5  2,070,184  1,567,490 
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INCORpORATION AND pRINCIpAL ACTIvITy 
 
Invest Saint Lucia; formerly the National Development 
Agency is a Government Statutory Body which was 
established by the National Development Agency Act, 1971 
(with subsequent amendments) to promote the economic 
development of Saint Lucia.

The Act of 1971 was superseded by Act No. 23 of 2001 
in support of the new focus/functions of the Agency’s 
economic activities.  The Act defines the powers of the 
Agency.  By Cabinet Conclusion No. 237 of 2013 the National 
Development Agency Act, No. 23 of 2001 was superseded 
by the Invest Saint Lucia Act No.14 of 2014 and includes the 
name change from National Development Agency to Invest 
Saint Lucia. Invest Saint Lucia is exempt from the payments 
of income tax and customs duties.

Invest Saint Lucia’s registered office and principal place of 
business is located on the 1st Floor, Heraldine Rock Building, 
Waterfront, Castries, Saint Lucia.

The separate financial statements were approved by the 
Board of Directors and authorized for issue on May 30, 
2017, and are prepared for the purpose of complying with 
statutory reporting requirements.

SuMMARy oF SIgnIFIcAnT AccounTIng 
pOLICIES 
 
(a) Statement of compliance 
 
The separate financial statements of Invest Saint Lucia have 
been prepared in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International 
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and under the 
historical cost convention.

(b) Basis for preparation
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with 
IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. 
It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the 
process of applying the Agency’s accounting policies.  The 
areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity 
or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to 
the financial statements are disclosed in Note 3.  

(c) new standards, amendments to standards and   
 interpretations
 
(i)	 New	standards,	amendments	and	interpretations	issued		
	 and	effective	and	relevant	to	Invest	Saint	Lucia	in	the		 	
	 financial	year	are	as	follows:

 
• IFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures was amended  
 to remove certain disclosure requirements for financial 

instruments, as part of a Disclosure Initiative which amended 
IAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements.  

The application of this amendment did not have a material 
impact on the disclosures in Invest Saint Lucia’s separate financial 
statements.

• IAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements was    
amended to address perceived impediments to preparers   
exercising their judgment in presenting their financial   
reports by making the following changes:

• clarification that information should not be obscured 
by aggregating or by providing immaterial information,  
materiality considerations apply to all parts of the financial 
statements, and even when a standard requires a specific 
disclosure, materiality considerations do apply;

• clarification that the list of line items to be presented in these 
statements can be disaggregated and aggregated as a relevant 
and additional guidance on  subtotals in these statements and 
clarification that an entity’s share of other comprehensive 
income of equity-accounted associates and joint ventures 
should be presented in aggregate as single line items based on 

 whether or not it will subsequently be reclassified to profit or 
loss;

• additional examples of possible ways of ordering the notes 
to clarify that understandability and comparability should 
be considered when determining the order of the notes and 
to demonstrate that the notes need not be presented in the 
order so far listed in paragraph 114 of IAS 1. 

The application of this amendment did not have a material 
impact on the disclosures in Invest Saint Lucia’s separate financial 
statements.
 
• IAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 38, Intangible 

Assets have been amended to reflect clarifications of 
acceptable methods of depreciation and amortisation.  The 
amendments to IAS 16 prohibit entities from using a revenue-
based depreciation method for items of property, plant and 
equipment.  The amendments to IAS 38 introduce a rebuttable 

 presumption that revenue is not an appropriate basis for 
amortisation of an intangible asset.  This presumption can 
only be rebutted in the following two limited circumstances:

• When the intangible asset is expressed as a measure of 
 revenue; or

• When it can be demonstrated that revenue and the 
 consumption of the economic benefits of the intangible 
 asset are highly correlated.

The application of the amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 did not 
have a material impact on Invest Saint Lucia’s separate financial 
statements.

2

1
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(c) new standards, amendments to standards and   
 interpretations (cont’d)
 
(ii}	New	standards,	amendments	and	interpretations	issued	
and	effective	and	relevant	to	Invest	Saint	Lucia	in	the	financial	
year	are	as	follows:	(cont’d)

• IAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements was amended 
to address perceived impediments to preparers exercising 
their judgment in presenting their financial reports by 
making the following changes:

• Clarification that information should not be obscured 
by aggregating or by providing immaterial information, 
materiality considerations apply to all parts of the 
financial statements, and even when a standard 
requires a specific disclosure, materiality considerations 
do apply;

• Clarification that the list of line items to be presented in 
these statements can be disaggregated and aggregated 
as relevant and additional guidance on subtotals in 
these statements and clarification that an entity’s share 
of other comprehensive income of equity-accounted 
associates and joint ventures should be presented in 
aggregate as single line items based on whether or not 
it will subsequently be reclassified to profit or loss;

• Additional examples of possible ways of ordering 
the notes to clarify that understandability and 
comparability should be considered when determining 
the order of the notes and to demonstrate that the 
notes need not be presented in the order so far listed 
in paragraph 114 of IAS1.

The application of this amendment did not have a material 
impact on the disclosures in Invest Saint Lucia’s separate 
financial statements.

• IAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 38, 
Intangible Assets have been amended to reflect 
clarifications of acceptable methods of depreciation and 
amortisation.  The amendments to IAS 16 prohibit entities 
from using a revenue-based depreciation method for items 
of property, plant and equipment.  The amendments to 
IAS 38 introduce a rebuttable presumption that revenue is 
not an appropriate basis for amortisation of an intangible 
asset.  This presumption can only be rebutted in the 
following two limited circumstances:

• When the intangible asset is expressed as a measure 
of revenue; or

• When it can be demonstrated that revenue and 
the consumption of the economic benefits of the 
intangible asset are highly correlated.

The application of the amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 did not 
have a material impact on Invest Saint Lucia’s separate financial 
statements.

• IAS 27, Separate Financial Statements was amended to 
allow for the equity method as an accounting option for 
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates 
in an entity’s separate financial statements.

The application of this amendment did not have a material 
impact on Invest Saint Lucia’s separate financial statements.

(ii)	Standards,	amendments	and	interpretations	that	are	
issued	but	not	effective	and	have	not	been	early	adopted	are	
as	follows:		

• IFRS 9, Financial Instruments first issued in November 
2009 and subsequently amended and introduced new 
requirements for the classification and measurement of 
financial assets.

(a) IFRS 9 introduces the approach to the classification of 
financial asset is held and their cash flow characteristics.  
A new business model was introduced which does 
allow certain financial assets to be categorised as “fair 
value through other comprehensive income” in certain 
circumstances.  The requirements for financial liabilities 
are mostly made to the fair value option for financial 
liabilities to address the issue of own credit risk.

(b) The new model introduces a single impairment model 
being applied to all financial instruments, as well as an 
“expected credit loss” model for the measurement of 
financial assets.

(c) IFRS 9 contains a new model for hedge accounting 
that aligns the accounting treatment with the risk 
management activities of an entity, in addition enhanced 
disclosures will provide better information about risk 
management and the effect of hedge accounting on 
the financial statement.  IFRS 9 carries forward the 
Derecognition requirements of financial assets and 
liabilities from IAS 39.  

This new standard is applicable for annual periods beginning on 
or after January 1, 2018.

It is anticipated that the application of IFRS 9 in the future may 
have a material impact on amounts reported in respect to Invest 
Saint Lucia’s financial assets and liabilities.  However, it is not 
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of IFRS 
9 until a detailed review is undertaken.

 
• IFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures was amended to 

require additional disclosures when an entity first applies 
IFRS 9, Financial Instruments, which include the changes 
in the categories and carrying amounts of financial 
instruments before and after the application of the new 
standard.  These amendments apply when an entity 
applies IFRS 9.
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(c) new standards, amendments to standards and   
 interpretations (cont’d)
 
(ii}	New	standards,	amendments	and	interpretations	issued	
and	effective	and	relevant	to	Invest	Saint	Lucia	in	the	financial	
year	are	as	follows:	(cont’d)

• IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers was 
issued in May 2014 and establishes a single comprehensive 
model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising 
from contracts with customers.  IFRS 15 will supersede 
the current revenue recognition guidance including IAS 18 
Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related 
interpretations. The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an 
entity should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of 
promised goods or services to customers in an amount 
that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects 
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.  
Under IFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when or 
as a performance obligation is satisfied, that is, when 
control of the goods or services underlying the particular 
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.  

 In April 2016, IFRS 15 was amended to clarify three aspects 
of the standard (identifying performance obligations, 
principal versus agent considerations, and licensing) and to 
provide some transition relief for modified contracts and 
completed contracts.

 It is not practical to provide a reasonable estimate of the 
effect of IFRS 15 until a detailed review is undertaken.

 This new standard is applicable for annual periods 
beginning on or after January 1, 2018. 

 IFRS 16, Leases was issued in January 2016 and will 
supersede IAS 17, Leases.  This standard provides a single 
lessee accounting model, requiring lessees to recognise 
assets and liabilities for all leases unless the lease term is 
12 months or less or the underlying asset has a low value. 
Lessors continue to classify leases as operating or finance, 
with IFRS 16’s approach to lessor accounting substantially 
unchanged from its predecessor.

 It is not practical to provide a reasonable estimate of the 
effect of IFRS 16 until a detailed review is undertaken.

 This new standard is applicable for annual periods 
beginning on or after January 1, 2019. 

(d) Foreign currency translation Functional and   
 presentation currency 

Items in the separate financial statements are measured 
using the currency of the primary economic environment 
in which the entity operates (the “functional currency”). 

The separate financial statements are presented in Eastern 
Caribbean dollars, which is Invest Saint Lucia’s functional 
and presentation currency.
 

TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies 
other than Eastern Caribbean dollars are translated 
at the rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date. 
Non-monetary assets and liabilities and transactions 
denominated in currencies other than Eastern Caribbean 
dollars are translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the 
date of the transaction. Foreign exchange gains and losses 
are charged to the separate statement of surplus or deficit.

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as 
equities classified as available-for-sale financial assets, are 
included in the fair value reserve in equity.

(e) cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried on the statement of 
financial position at cost.  For the purpose of the statement 
of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise 
balances with a maturity period of three months or less 
from the date of acquisition including cash on hand and 
deposits held on call with banks and bank overdrafts. Bank 
overdraft, if any, are shown within borrowings in current 
liabilities on the separate statement of financial position.

(f) Financial assets

Invest Saint Lucia classifies its financial assets in the 
following categories: loans and receivables and available-
for-sale.  The classification depends on the purpose 
for which the investment is acquired.  Management 
determines the classification of its investments at initial 
recognition.

(i)	 Loans	and	receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets, 
with fixed or determinable payments which are not 
quoted in an active market and where management has 
no intention of trading them.  They are included in current 
assets, except for those with maturities greater than 12 
months, which are classed as non-current assets.

Loans and receivables are initially recognized at fair value 
– which is the cash consideration to originate or purchase 
the loan including any transaction costs - and measured 
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest 
rate method.  Loans and receivables are reported in 
the balance sheet as investments securities. Interest 
on investment securities is included in the separate 
statement of surplus or deficit.  In the case of impairment, 

2.  SuMMARy oF SIgnIFIcAnT AccounTIng polIcIeS (conT’D)
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2.  SuMMARy oF SIgnIFIcAnT AccounTIng polIcIeS (conT’D)

the impairment loss is reported as a deduction from the 
carrying value of the loan and recognised in the separate 
statement of surplus or deficit.

(ii)	 Available-for-sale

Available-for sale financial assets are non-derivative 
financial assets that are designated as available for sale or 
are not classified as (a) loans and receivables (b) held-to-
maturity investments or (c) financial assets at fair value 
through profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial assets are initially recognized 
at fair value plus transaction costs and derecognized when 
the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets 
have expired or where Invest Saint Lucia has transferred 
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently carried 
at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in 
the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets are 
recognized in other comprehensive income, until the 
financial asset is derecognized or impaired at which time 
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in other 
comprehensive income is transferred to the separate 
statement of surplus or deficit. Related interest income is 
recognized in the separate statement of surplus or deficit 
and dividend income is also recognized in the separate 
statement of surplus or deficit when Invest Saint Lucia’s 
right to receive payment is established.

The fair values of quoted investments in active markets 
are based on bid prices. If the market for a financial asset 
is not active (and for unlisted securities), Invest Saint Lucia 
establishes fair value by using valuation techniques. These 
include recent arm’s length transactions, discounted cash 
flow analysis and other valuation techniques commonly 
used by market participants.

(iii)				Offsetting	financial	instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net 
amount reported in the statement of financial position 
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the 
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on 
a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously. 

(g) Impairment of financial assets: Available-for-sale   
 assets

Invest Saint Lucia assesses at each reporting date whether 
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a 
group or financial assets is impaired.  In the case of equity 
securities classified as available-for-sale, a significant 
or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security 

below its cost is considered in determining whether 
the securities are impaired. If such evidence exists, the 
cumulative loss which is measured as the difference 
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, 
less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously 
recognized in surplus or deficit, is removed from equity 
and recognized in the separate statement of surplus or 
deficit.

(h) Impairment of financial assets: Trade receivables

Trade receivable are recognized initially at fair value 
and subsequently measured at amortized cost less 
provision for impairment.  A provision for impairment of 
trade receivables is established when there is objective 
evidence that Invest Saint Lucia will not be able to collect 
all amounts due according to the original contract terms. 
The amount of the provision is the difference between the 
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated 
future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s 
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset 
is reduced by the use of an allowance account and the 
amount of loss is recognized in the separate statement of 
surplus or deficit.

When a trade receivable is uncollectable, it is written-off 
against the allowance for trade receivables. Subsequent 
recoveries of amounts previously written-off are credited 
in the separate statement of surplus or deficit.

(i) Investments in subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are those entities over which Invest Saint 
Lucia has the power to govern the financial and operating 
policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more 
than one half of the voting rights. 
Investments in subsidiaries are recorded at cost less any 
provision for impairment.

(j) Investments in associates
Associates represent those entities over which Invest Saint 
Lucia has significant influence.

Investments in associates are recorded at cost less any 
provision for impairment.

(k)   land developments

The land developments comprise of inventory of land held 
for development and costs associated with development. 
The development costs is written to cost of sales on the 
basis of land sold in each development in each period. 
Land development is valued at the lower of cost and net 
realizable value. Net realizable value is the estimated 
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less selling 
costs. 
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(l) land for sale
 
Land for sale consists of agriculture and undeveloped land 
that have been vested by the Government of Saint Lucia 
which is for sale to investors.  Inventory of land for sale is 
valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value.  Cost is 
determined using the weighted average cost method.  Net 
realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary 
course of business, less selling costs.

(m) property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical 
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment 
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly 
attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent 
costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or 
recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when 
it is probable that future economic benefits associated 
with the item will flow to Invest Saint Lucia and the cost 
of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and 
maintenance are charged to the separate statement of 
surplus or deficit during the financial period in which they 
are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using either the reducing balance 
or straight line method to allocate the cost less salvage over 
their estimated useful lives as follows:

Leasehold improvements 2% Straight line method
Motor vehicles 20% Straight line method
Furniture and fittings 10% Reducing balance method
Office equipment 12% Reducing balance method
Software 33% Straight line method

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, 
and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately 
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is 
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing 
the proceeds received to the outstanding carrying amount. 
These are included in the separate statement of surplus or 
deficit.

(n) Investment property

Investment property principally comprises of a shopping 
complex and factory shells. Investment property is carried 
at cost, held for long-term rental yields and capital gains 
and is not occupied by Invest Saint Lucia. Depreciation 
is calculated on the straight-line method to write-off the 
cost of each building and leasehold improvement to their 

residual value over their estimated useful lives at a rate of 
2%.  Land is not depreciated.  

(o) Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, all non-financial 
assets are assessed for any indicators of impairment.  If 
an indicator exists, the asset’s recoverable amount must 
be calculated. An impairment loss is recognized for the 
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds 
its recoverable amount. For the purposes of assessing 
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for 
which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash 
generating units).

(p) Trade payables

Trade payables are recognized initially at fair value and 
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the 
effective interest method.

(q) Borrowings

Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, net of 
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently 
stated at amortized cost; any difference between the 
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption 
value is recognized in the separate statement of surplus or 
deficit over the period of the borrowing using the effective 
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless Invest 
Saint Lucia has an unconditional right to defer settlement of 
the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

(r) contributed capital

Contributed capital represents cash, investments, land and 
buildings vested by the Government of Saint Lucia in Invest 
Saint Lucia and are all recognized at fair value in the period 
in which they are vested.

(s) leases

Leases are accounted for as operating leases in accordance 
with International Accounting Standard 17.  In instances 
where Invest Saint Lucia is the lessor, rental income is 
recorded as revenue and the related building is reflected as 
investment properties. In the instances where Invest Saint 
Lucia is the lessee, rental expense is recorded. 

(t) Revenue and expense recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration 
received or receivable for the sale of goods and services, 
net of discounts in the ordinary course of Invest Saint Lucia’s 
activities. Revenue is recognized as follows:

2    SuMMARy oF SIgnIFIcAnT AccounTIng polIcIeS (conT’D)
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(i)	 Land	sales
 Income from land sales is recognized upon issuance 

of a deed of sale and when costs incurred or to be 
incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured 
reliably. Deposits received prior to the completion of 
the transaction are recorded as advanced deposits in 
deferred revenue.

(ii	 Rental	income
 Rental income is recorded on an accrual basis.

(iii)	 Dividend	income
 Dividend income is recognized when the right to 

receive payment is established.

(iv)	 Other	income
 Other income is recorded on an accrual basis.

(v)	 Interest	income
 Interest income is recognized on a time-proportion 

basis using the effective interest rate method.

(vi)		 Expenses
 Expenses are recognized when incurred under the 

accrual basis.

(u) cost of land sold

The cost of land sold is determined on the basis of the cost 
of land inventory plus development costs of unsold land 
apportioned over the total area sold each year for each 
project.

(v) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment 
is terminated by Invest Saint Lucia before the normal 
retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts 
voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. 
Invest Saint Lucia recognizes termination benefits when 
it is demonstrably committed to either terminating the 
employment of current employees according to a detailed 
formal plan without the possibility of withdrawal; or 
providing termination benefits as a result of an offer 
made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits 
falling due more than 12 months after the reporting date 
are discounted to present value. Gratuity payments to 
contractual employees are also accounted for as terminal 
benefits. 

(w) provisions

Provisions, if any, are recognized, when Invest Saint Lucia 
has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of 
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will 
be required to settle the obligation and the amount has 
been reliably estimated.  

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of 
the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at 
the end of the reporting period.

(x) contingencies

Contingent liabilities represent possible obligations and 
are disclosed in the separate financial statements unless 
the possibility of the outflow of resources embodying 
the economic benefit is remote. A contingent asset is 
not recognized in the separate financial statements but 
disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

(y) Subsequent events

Post year-end events that provide additional information 
about the Agency’s position at the reporting date (adjusting 
events) are reflected in Invest Saint Lucia’s separate financial 
statements. Material post year-end events which are not 
adjusting events are disclosed.

(z) comparative figures

Where necessary, certain prior year comparative figures 
have been changed to conform to the changes in the current 
year’s presentation. 

3    cRITIcAl AccounTIng eSTIMATeS AnD    
       juDgMenTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are 
based on historical experience and other factors, including 
expectations of future events that are believed to be 
reasonable under the circumstances.

Invest Saint Lucia makes estimates and assumptions 
concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates 
will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. 
The estimates and assumptions that may have a significant 
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial 
year are discussed below:

provision for future development costs
Invest Saint Lucia’s Properties Management Department 
along with outsourced consultants determined the future 
estimated costs of infrastructural development of land 
held for resale. This was based on projected expenditure 
required to complete development in order to facilitate the 
transfer to the purchaser.

Management reassesses the estimate at each year end 
and adjusts the provision for future development costs as 
necessary. 
 

2.  SuMMARy oF SIgnIFIcAnT AccounTIng polIcIeS (conT’D)
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FInAncIAl RISk MAnAgeMenT 
 
In accordance with provisions of International Financial Reporting Standard No. 7, disclosures are required regarding credit risks, 
liquidity risks, market risks and the fair value of financial assets and liabilities.

 
(a)  credit risk 
 
Credit risk arises from the possibility that counterparties may default on their obligations to Invest Saint Lucia.  The amount 
of Invest Saint Lucia’s maximum exposure to credit risk is indicated by the carrying amount of its financial assets.

Invest Saint Lucia operates primarily in the real estate industry and financial instruments which potentially expose Invest 
Saint Lucia to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, and 
investment securities: 

Maximum exposure to credit risk is as follows: 

4

December 31, 2016 December 31, 2015
Notes $ $

Cash and cash equivalents (excluding cash on hand) 5 2,068,934 1,566,490
Trade and other receivables 
(excluding prepayments) 6 1,919,621 14,837,777
Investment securities: loans and receivables 8 23,136,570 20,905,665

27,125,125 37,309,932

Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are summarised as follows:

December 31, 2016 December 31, 2015
Note $ $

Neither past due nor impaired 771,679 13,000,000
Past due but not impaired 1,147,942 1,837,777
Impaired 3,634,097 4,319,281

Gross 5,553,718 19,157,058

Less:  Allowance for impairment 6  (3,634,097)  (4,319,281)

Net 1,919,621 14,837,777
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      (a)  credit risk (cont’d) 

The total impairment provision for trade and other receivables recognized in the separate statement of surplus or deficit is 
$102,256 (2015 - ($61,914). Further information on the impairment allowance for trade and other receivables is disclosed 
in Note 6.The credit quality of the portfolio of trade and other receivables which were neither past due nor impaired can be 
assessed by reference to the internal rating system adopted by Invest Saint Lucia.

(i) Trade and other receivables neither past due or impaired

(ii)  Trade and other receivables past due but not impaired
Gross amount of trade receivables by age to customers that were past due but not impaired were as follows:

4.   FInAncIAl RISk MAnAgeMenT (conT’D)

Customers Hotels  Receivables Total
$ $ $ $

As at December 31, 2016
Customers with no history of default  -  - 771,679 771,679

As at December 31, 2015

Customers with no history of default  - 11,978,437 1,022,256 13,000,693

December December
31, 2016 31, 2015

$ $

Past due up to 30 days 134,324 429,986
Past due 31-60 days 60,202 146,671
Past due 61-90 days  9,463  18,550 
Past due over 90 days  943,953  1,242,570 

1,147,942 1,837,777
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(b) liquidity risk
 
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents and the availability of funding 
through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying business, Invest Saint 
Lucia attempts to maintain flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed credit facilities coupled with support 
from the Government of Saint Lucia.

Management monitors Invest Saint Lucia’s liquidity position on the basis of expected cash flow.

The table below analyses Invest Saint Lucia’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period 
at the separate statement of financial position to the contractual maturity dates. The amounts disclosed in the table are the 
contractual undiscounted cash flows. 

4.   FInAncIAl RISk MAnAgeMenT (conT’D)

Less than Between Between Over
1 year 1 and 2 years 2 and 5 years 5 years Total

$ $ $ $ $
At December 31, 2016
Borrowings 378,696 460,548 694,597 3,469,409 5,003,250
Trade and other payables  2,610,028  -  -  - 2,610,028
Due to subsidiary  -  -  - 313,454 313,454

2,988,724 460,548 694,597 3,782,863 7,926,732

At December 31, 2015
Borrowings 12,870,823 634,860 653,280 3,714,076 17,873,039
Trade and other payables  2,572,052  -  -  - 2,572,052
Due to subsidiary  -  -  - 266,739 266,739

15,442,875 634,860 653,280 3,980,815 20,711,830
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(c) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market rates, such as 
interest rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices will 
affect the value of Invest Saint Lucia’s assets, the amount of 
its liabilities and/or Invest Saint Lucia’s income. Invest Saint 
Lucia is exposed to market risk on its investments.

•	 Foreign	currency	risk
Changes in foreign currency rates may expose Invest Saint 
Lucia to currency risk. Invest Saint Lucia’s    borrowings 
are denominated in United States dollars (US$).  The 
exchange rate of the EC$ to the US$ has been formally 
pegged at EC$2.70 = US$1.00 since July 1976. The 
exposure to US$ is detailed in Note 13. Management 
does not believe that significant exposure to foreign 
currency risk exists as at December 31, 2016.

•	 Interest	rate	risk
Differences in contractual re-pricing or maturity dates and 
changes in interest rates may expose Invest Saint Lucia 
to interest rate risk. Invest Saint Lucia’s exposure and 
interest rate risk on its financial assets and liabilities are 
disclosed in Notes 5 and 13.

•	 Price	risk
Invest Saint Lucia is exposed to equity securities price 
risk because of investments held by Invest Saint Lucia 
and classified on the statement of financial position as 
investment securities:- available-for-sale, at fair value.  
Invest Saint Lucia is not exposed to commodity price risk. 
At December 31, 2016, if investment securities:- available 
for sale prices had been 10% higher/lower, with all other 
variables held constant, net surplus and equity for the 
year would  have been $30,900 higher/lower (2015 - 
$33,000  higher/lower).

(d) capital management 

Invest Saint Lucia’s objectives when managing capital is to 
safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern in order 
to provide benefits for its stakeholders and to maintain 
a strong capital base to support the development of its 
business.
 
(e) Fair values of financial assets and liabilities 

(i)	 Financial	instruments	not	measured	at	fair	value
	 Fair	value	amounts	represent	estimates	of	the	

consideration	that	would	currently	be	agreed	upon	
between	knowledgeable	and	willing	parties,	who	are	
under	no	compulsion	to	act	and	is	best	evidenced	by	
quoted	market	values.

The table below summarises the carrying amounts and fair 
values of those financial assets and liabilities not valued at 
fair value.

4.   FInAncIAl RISk MAnAgeMenT (conT’D)

           December 31, 2016                       December 31, 2015

Carrying  Value Fair  Value Carrying  Value Fair  Value

$ $ $ $

Trade and other receivables  2,273,496  2,273,496  15,264,778  15,264,778 

Investment securities: loans and receivables  23,136,570  22,636,897  20,905,665  20,508,957 

Borrowings  5,003,250  2,427,476  17,873,039  14,696,795 

 30,413,316  27,337,869  54,043,482  50,470,530 
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(ii)	Fair	value	hierarchy

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair 
value. The different levels have been defined as follows:

•	 Level	1	-	Quoted	prices	(unadjusted)	in	active	markets	for	
identical	assets	or	liabilities.	A	market	is	regarded	as	active	
if	quoted	prices	are	readily	and	regularly	available	from	an	
exchange,	dealer,	broker,	industry	group,	pricing	service	or	
regulatory	agency	and	those	prices	represent	actual	and	
regularly	occurring	market	transactions	on	an	arm’s	length	
basis.

•	 Level	2	-	Inputs	other	than	quoted	prices	included	within	
Level	1	that	are	observable	for	the	asset	or	liability,	either	
directly	or	indirectly.

•	 Level	3	-	inputs	for	the	asset	or	liability	that	are	not	
	 based	on	observable	market	data	(unobservable	inputs).	

	 This	hierarchy	requires	the	use	of	observable	market	data	
when	available.	Invest	Saint	Lucia	considers	relevant	and	
observable	market	prices	in	its	valuations	where	possible.

The following table presents Invest Saint Lucia’s assets that Assets measured at fair value

Level 2
Note $

At  December 31, 2016

Financial assets: Investment securities

Available for sale - equity 8 309,000

At December 31, 2015
Financial assets: Investment securities
Available for sale - equity 8 330,000

The following table presents Invest Saint Lucia’s assets and liabilities for which fair values are disclosed:
Level 2

$
At December 31, 2016

Trade and other receivables 2,273,496

Investment properties 100,558,409

Borrowings 2,427,476

105,259,381
At December 31, 2015
Trade and other receivables 15,264,778
Investment properties 100,558,409
Borrowings 14,696,795 

130,519,982

4.   FInAncIAl RISk MAnAgeMenT (conT’D)
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december 
31, 2016

december 
31, 2015

$ $
Cash on hand 1,250 1,000

Cash at bank - current account 1,424,581 263,049

Cash at bank - savings account 644,353 1,303,441
2,070,184 1,567,490

CASH AND CASH EquIvALENTS

The weighted average effective interest rate on the savings account at December 31, 2016 was 1% (2015 - 1%). Of the balance, 
$399,219 (2015 - Nil) has been placed in escrow and $65,786 (2015 - $65,786) forms part of the security arrangements for certain 
borrowings which is further described in Note 13. As such, these amounts are not available for the day-to-day operations of Invest 
Saint Lucia.  

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIvABLES

5

6

December December 
31, 2016 31, 2015

$ $

Trade receivables 4,121,979 5,122,861
Provision for impairment of trade receivables   (3,051,539)  (3,717,823)

Trade receivables (net) 1,070,440 1,405,038

Other receivables 1,431,739 14,034,197
Provision for impairment of other receivables  (582,558)  (601,458)

Other receivables (net) 849,181 13,432,739

Prepayments 353,875 427,001

Total trade and other receivables 2,273,496 15,264,778

INVEST SAINT LUCIA
Notes to the Separate Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016 
With Comparatives 
For the Nine Month Period Ended December 31, 2015
(Expressed in Eastern Caribbean Dollars)



48    INVEST SAINT LUCIA ANNUAL REPORT 2016

6.   TRADe AnD oTheR ReceIvABleS (conT’D)

The classification of trade and other receivables is as follows: December December 
31, 2016 31, 2015

$ $
Current 1,478,909 14,159,770
Non-current 794,587 1,105,008
Total trade and other receivables 2,273,496 15,264,778

The non-current receivables mature as follows: December December 
31, 2016 31, 2015

$ $
Between 1 and 2 years 615,393 814,029
Between 2 and 5 years 54,000 54,000
Over 5 years 125,194 236,979

794,587 1,105,008

The movement in Invest Saint Lucia’s provision for impairment of trade and other receivables is as follows:

December December 
31, 2016 31, 2015

Note $ $
At beginning of year/period 4,319,281 4,289,890
Impairment expense 102,255 61,914
Impairment reversal/recovery  (787,439)  (32,523)

At end of year/period 4 3,634,097 4,319,281
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lAnD DevelopMenTS

InveSTMenT SecuRITIeS8

December December 
31, 2016 31, 2015

$ $
Southern Shores development
At beginning and end of year/period  915,683  915,683 

Other developments
At beginning of year/period  11,914,424  13,123,298 
Land sales recognized in the year/period  (1,075,310)  (1,770,694)
Provisions for future development costs  -  561,820 
At end of year/period  10,839,114  11,914,424 

 11,754,797  12,830,107 

December December 

31, 2016 31, 2015

$ $

Debt securities at amortized cost with fixed interest rate:

Loans and receivables 

Current 16,736,570 19,305,665

Non-current 6,400,000 1,600,000

23,136,570 20,905,665

Available-for sale

Equity securities 910,860 931,860

7
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Debt securities bear interest rates ranging from 2.50% to 7% (2015: 2.75% - 7%) per annum.  There were no 
debt securities that were considered past due or impaired at the reporting date.

Unlisted available-for-sale equity securities are carried at cost. Invest Saint Lucia is not able to reliably measure the fair 
value of the equity securities since the shares are not traded in an active market and the future cash flows relating to the 
securities cannot be reliably estimated.

Listed available-for-sale equity securities represent shareholdings in Eastern Caribbean Financial Holdings Company Limited.  

8.   InveSTMenT SecuRITIeS (conT’D)

Loans and Available-
Receivables for-sale

$ $
At December 31, 2016
At beginning of year 20,905,665 931,860
Purchases 26,886,570  - 

Redemptions  (24,655,665)  - 
Fair value loss during the year  -  (21,000)
At end of year 23,136,570 910,860

At  December 31, 2015
At beginning of period 15,696,514 961,860
Purchases 19,305,664  - 
Redemptions  (14,096,513)  - 
Fair value loss during the period  -  (30,000)
At end of period 20,905,665 931,860

December December 
31, 2016 31, 2015

Note $ $

Unlisted equity securities - measured at cost  601,860  601,860 
Listed equity securities - measured at fair value 4  309,000  330,000 

 910,860  931,860 
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InveSTMenT In SuBSIDIARIeS 

On January 15, 2007, on the instructions of the Government of Saint Lucia, Invest Saint Lucia’s shareholdings in St. Lucia 
Development Livestock Co. Ltd. and St. Lucia Fish Marketing Agency Ltd. were to be transferred to the Ministry of Agriculture. On 
July 1, 2013, the shares of St. Lucia Fish Marketing Agency Ltd. were transferred. As at December 31, 2016, the required regulatory 
processes to effect the transfer of St. Lucia Livestock Limited’s shares remained outstanding. This company is dormant and presently 
does not conduct any business activities. 

InveSTMenT In ASSocIATeS10

Provision for Net Net
No. of Shareholding Cost Impairment Transfer Dec. -16 Dec. -15

Shares % $ $ $ $ $
Dennery Farmco Limited  456,000 100 4,560,000  (4,560,000)  -  -  - 

St. Lucia Livestock 
Development Co. Ltd.  1,600,000 100 1,804,221  (1,804,221)  -  -  - 
National Landco. Ltd.  3 100 1  -  - 1 1

6,364,222  (6,364,221)  - 1 1

Provision for Net Net
No. of Shareholding Cost Impairment Dec. -16 Dec. -15
Shares % $ $ $ $

Northrock Limited  196,000 49  196,000  (196,000)  -  - 
St. Lucia Model Farms Limited  10,000 33  10,000  (10,000)  -  - 
SCIC (Windward Islands) 
Limited

 2,700 25  270,000  (270,000)  -  - 

 476,000  (476,000)  -  - 

The above companies are dormant, with no business activity, but still exist legally. 

9
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pRopeRTy, plAnT AnD eQuIpMenT

Leasehold Furniture Office Motor 
Improve-

ments
 and fittings equipment Software vehicles Total

$ $ $ $ $ $
As at March 31, 2015
Cost  939,645  702,103  3,592,402  -  393,253  5,627,403 
Accumulated depreciation  (167,840)  (511,209)  (2,136,587)  -  (318,237)  (3,133,873)

 771,805  190,894  1,455,815  -  75,016  2,493,530 
For the year ended  December 31, 2015  771,805  190,894  1,455,815  -  75,016  2,493,530 
Additions in the year  12,115  13,439  57,475  20,526  -  103,555 
Disposals in the period  -  (430,052)  (1,129,648)  -  -  (1,559,700)
Accumulated depreciation on disposals  -  408,250  1,063,137  -  -  1,471,387 
Transfer  -  -  (123,181)  123,181  -  - 
Depreciation charge for the period  (14,095)  (13,073)  (113,423)  (32,824)  (38,216)  (211,631)
Closing net book value  769,825  169,458  1,210,175  110,883  36,800  2,297,141 
As at December 31, 2015
Cost  951,760  285,490  2,397,048  143,707  393,253  4,171,258 
Accumulated depreciation  (181,935)  (116,032)  (1,186,873)  (32,824)  (356,453)  (1,874,117)

 769,825  169,458  1,210,175  110,883  36,800  2,297,141 
For the year ended December 31, 2016
Opening net book value  769,825  169,458  1,210,175  110,883  36,800  2,297,141 
Additions in the year  13,729  10,534  49,428  11,601  94,218  179,510 
Disposals in the period  -  -  -  -  (326,963)  (326,963)
Accumulated depreciation on disposals  -  -  -  -  293,843  293,843 
Depreciation charge for the year  (19,241)  (16,704)  (141,616)  (50,443)  (19,383)  (247,387)
Closing net book value  764,313  163,288  1,117,987  72,041  78,515  2,196,144 
As at December 31, 2016
Cost  965,489  296,024  2,446,476  155,308  160,508  4,023,805 
Accumulated depreciation  (201,176)  (132,736)  (1,328,489)  (83,267)  (81,993)  (1,827,661)

 764,313  163,288  1,117,987  72,041  78,515  2,196,144 

11
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InveSTMenT pRopeRTIeS

Land Building Total
$ $ $

As at March 31, 2015
Cost  5,744,695  42,215,456  47,960,151 
Accumulated depreciation  -  (18,255,056)  (18,255,056)

 5,744,695  23,960,400  29,705,095 
For the year ended December 31, 2015
Opening net book value  5,744,695  23,960,400  29,705,095 
Additions in the year  -  483,361  483,361 
Depreciation charge for the year  -  (645,315)  (645,315)
Closing net book value  5,744,695  23,798,446  29,543,141 
As at December 31, 2015
Cost  5,744,695  42,698,817  48,443,512 
Accumulated depreciation  -  (18,900,371)  (18,900,371)

 5,744,695  23,798,446  29,543,141 
For the period ended  December 31, 2016
Opening net book value  5,744,695  23,798,446  29,543,141 
Additions in the year  -  1,580,337  1,580,337 
Disposal in the year  -  (158,887)  (158,887)
Accumulated depreciation on disposal  -  94,273  94,273 
Depreciation charge for the year  -  (872,639)  (872,639)
Closing net book value  5,744,695  24,441,530  30,186,225 
As at December 31, 2016
Cost  5,744,695  44,120,267  49,864,962 
Accumulated depreciation  -  (19,678,737)  (19,678,737)

 5,744,695  24,441,530  30,186,225 

12
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12.   InveSTMenT pRopeRTIeS  conT’D

Invest Saint Lucia’s investment property consists of properties at Pointe Seraphine and factory shells. The total fair value 
of the investment property is $100,558,409, determined using the replacement cost and sales comparable methods as 
provided by professionally qualified valuers. The Pointe Seraphine valuation was provided on August 14, 2013 and the 
factory shells valuation was provided on March 31, 2014. 

The following amounts have been recognized in the separate statement of surplus or deficit:

December December 
31, 2016 31, 2015

$ $
Property department: 
Operating lease - rental income  3,361,060  2,187,565 
Point Seraphine:
Operating lease - rental income  3,181,165  2,400,865 
Facility fees  237,780  165,809 

 3,418,945  2,566,674 
 6,780,005  4,754,239 

The minimum lease payments on existing operating leases from investment properties are as follows:

December December 
31, 2016 31, 2015

$ $
Not more than 1 year 5,843,727 6,324,480
Later than 1 year and not more than five years 17,531,181 19,735,176
More than five years  9,662,568  11,426,040 

33,037,476 37,485,696
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BORROwINGS

Bank of Saint Lucia Limited
This loan is secured by a hypothecary instrument over 43,096 sq. ft. of land with a factory there on at Bisee.

Bank of nova Scotia
The bank borrowing from Bank of Nova Scotia (2015 - $12,399,248) was paid during the year.

Caribbean Development Bank
This loan is guaranteed by the Government of Saint Lucia and is unsecured. 

Government of Saint Lucia
The Government of Saint Lucia loans are funds obtained from the Caribbean Development Bank for which Invest 
Saint Lucia acts as the executing agency.  These loans are guaranteed by the Government of Saint Lucia and are 
unsecured and non-interest bearing.

December December 
31, 2016 31, 2015

$ $
Bank of Saint Lucia Limited
8% loan repayable in monthly installments of $17,202 until 2024 until 2024 1,156,915 1,265,525
6% loan repayable in monthly installments of $26,943 until June 2017 198,416 499,936

Bank of Nova Scotia
4% loan repayable in monthly installments of $17,550  - 420,811

4% loan repayable in monthly installments of $292,502  - 11,978,437

Caribbean Development Bank
2% loan repayable in quarterly installments of $20,652
until July 2031 1,046,458 1,106,869

Government of St. Lucia 2,601,461 2,601,461

Total borrowings 5,003,250 17,873,039
Less: current portion  (378,696)  (12,870,823)

Non current portion 4,624,554 5,002,216

13
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13.  BORROwINGS CONT’D

The maturity of non-current borrowings is as follows

December December 
31, 2016 31, 2015

$ $

Between 1 and 2 years  460,548  634,860 
Between 3 and 5 years  694,597  653,280 
Over 5 years  3,469,409  3,714,076 

 4,624,554  5,002,216 

The weighted average effective interest rates at the year-end are as follows:

December December 
31, 2016 31, 2015

% %
Bank borrowings  2.51  4 

Invest Saint Lucia’s exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk at year end is as follows:

December December 
31, 2016 31, 2015

$ $
Bank of Nova Scotia Loan 16330053: USD 4,436,458

(December 2015 - USD 4,436,458)  -  11,978,437 
Bank of Nova Scotia Loan 163300897: 
(December 2015 - USD 155,856)  -  420,811 
Caribbean Development Loan 011SFRORSTL3: 
USD 387,577 (December 2015 - USD 409,951)  1,046,458  1,106,868 

 1,046,458  13,506,116 

Invest Saint Lucia has a bank overdraft facility for $2,350,000 which is secured by Invest Saint Lucia’s investment in the 
Windward and Leeward Brewery Limited. The facility was undrawn at the year end.
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TRADE AND OTHER pAyABLES

pRovISIon FoR FuTuRe DevelopMenT coSTS

DEFERRED REvENuE

December December 
31, 2016 31, 2015

$ $
Accrued fund 1,323,925 1,235,902
Security deposits 694,880 631,115

Trade payables 358,441 507,125
Other payables 196,345 146,456
Retention fund 36,437 51,454

2,610,028 2,572,052

December December 
31, 2016 31, 2015

$ $
Current 937,177 2,172,754
Non-current portion 2,976,668 2,976,669

3,913,845 5,149,423

December December 
31, 2016 31, 2015

$ $
Advance  3,284,343  3,299,151 
Current portion  (937,635)  (490,946)

Non-current portion  2,346,708  2,808,205 

Advance deposits represent amounts received from customers before the completion of the sale of lands.

14
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CONTRIBuTED CApITAL

Contributed capital assets represents cash and cash equivalents, investments, lands and buildings vested by the 
Government of Saint Lucia and are recognized at the fair value at the date on which they were vested.  Included in 
investments and grants is an amount of $478,236 received from the European Development Fund Grant.

RELATED pARTy BALANCES AND TRANSACTION

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the 
other party by making financial and operational decisions

December December 
31, 2016 31, 2015

$ $
Investments and grants 6,283,216 6,283,210
Cash and cash equivalents 1,434,821 1,434,821
Lands:
Vieux Fort 14,512,362 14,465,671
Point Seraphine 4,051,080 4,051,080
Laborie 962,493 962,493
Bisee 247,879 247,879
La Toc 100,000 100,000
Dennery 32,000 32,000
Buildings:
Cantonement 6,081,629 6,081,629
Beauchamp Industrial 2,815,837 2,815,837
Odsan 388,581 388,581
Vieux-Fort 154,275 154,275

37,064,173 37,017,476

17

December December 
31, 2016 31, 2015

$ $
Due to subsidiary
National Landco Ltd. 313,454 266,739

18
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Repayment of surplus comprises an amount of $4,661,232 paid to the Government of St. Lucia, representing net proceeds from 
the sale of lands in Choiseul to the GP Group; and the cost of construction of a new road at Duty Free Pointe Seraphine at a cost 
of $360,498, which ownership was transferred to the Ministry of Infrastructure on completion.

Cabinet, by Conclusion No. 842 of 2000, agreed to vest eleven (11) warehouses and one (1) administrative building at a total 
value of $17,000,000, located in the Free Zone Management Authority (“FZMA”). The land and other contiguous parcels 
totaling approximately 15.3 acres are to be transferred by Invest Saint Lucia to the FZMA.

The value of the land and the compensation payable to Invest Saint Lucia has not yet been agreed and the relevant vesting 
orders have not been executed. Invest Saint Lucia is intending to enter into a twenty-five (25) year Emphyteutic lease 
arrangement with the FZMA instead of outright vesting. To this end a draft lease agreement was prepared and forwarded for 
signature. This transaction has not yet been concluded and is therefore not reflected in the separate financial statements.
 

RepAyMenT oF SuRpluS19

20

On January 15, 2014, Invest Saint Lucia entered into a joint venture agreement with OB Sadoo Engineering Services Limited 
to undertake infrastructural works in a housing development in Black Bay, Vieux Fort. The joint venture agreement states 
that Invest St. Lucia will contribute the land to this project while, OB Sadoo Engineering Services Limited will undertake the 
infrastructural costs and be partially refunded by Invest St. Lucia at a rate of $9.98 per square foot. Residual profits from this 
development will be split equally between the two parties subsequent to the sale of all lots. This represents a joint operation as 
a separate investment vehicle does not exist and Invest Saint Lucia reflects its share of assets, liabilities, income and expenses 
within the separate financial statements. 

joInT venTuRe AgReeMenT21

vESTED pROpERTy

DepARTMenT opeRATIng pRoFIT22

                    Properties Department              Pointe Seraphine Total
Nine nonth Nine nonth Nine nonth

period ended period ended period ended
December December December December December December 

31, 2016 31, 2015 31, 2016 31, 2015 31, 2016 31, 2015
$ $ $ $ $ $

Revenue
Land sales 7,844,204 3,600,369  -  - 7,844,204 3,600,369
Operating lease - rental income 3,361,060 2,187,565  3,181,165  2,400,865 6,542,225 4,588,430
Facility fees  -  -  237,780 165,809 237,780 165,809

11,205,264 5,787,934 3,418,945 2,566,674 14,624,209 8,354,608
Direct costs
Cost of land sales  (1,504,492)  (1,218,388)  -  -  (1,504,492)  (1,218,388)

Operational costs  (2,801,990)  (1,807,254)  (1,822,791)  (1,554,132)  (4,624,781)  (3,361,386)
 (4,306,482)  (3,025,642)  (1,822,791)  (1,554,132)  (6,129,273)  (4,579,774)

Departmental operating profit 6,898,782 2,762,292 1,596,154 1,012,542 8,494,936 3,774,834
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ExpENSES By NATuRE

Nine month period 
ended 

December December 
31, 2016 31, 2015

Notes $ $
Employee benefit expenses 24  3,200,595  2,237,536 
Cost of land sales  1,504,492  1,218,380 
Repairs and maintenance  1,242,125  709,688 
Depreciation 11, 12  1,120,026  856,946 
Security  561,037  421,630 
Office rental  313,188  227,656 
Insurance  253,659  241,555 
Promotions and publicity  234,314  263,915 
Travelling and entertainment  222,545  162,530 
Legal and professional fees  196,327  63,962 
Office expenses  179,246  216,556 
Utilities  164,898  412,475 
Impairment of trade and other receivables  102,256  29,391 
Advertising  64,188  31,632 
Motor vehicle expenses  55,034  69,253 
Members allowances  34,500  31,500 
Printing and stationery  11,078  8,262 
Bank charges  10,735  8,618 
Total direct costs, general and administrative
expenses 9,470,243 7,211,485
Direct cost - Properties department 4,306,482 3,025,642
Direct cost - Point Seraphine 1,822,791 1,554,132
General and administrative expenses 3,340,970 2,631,711

9,470,243 7,211,485
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eMployee BeneFIT expenSeS24

Nine months
period ended

December December 
31, 2016 31, 2015

Note $ $
Salaries and wages 2,808,858 1,930,969
Termination benefits 165,904 69,210
Other staff costs 225,833 237,357

23 3,200,595 2,237,536

The average number of employees at December 31, 2016 was 41 (2015 - 41).
Key management compensation

December December 
31, 2016 31, 2015

$ $
Salaries and wages 569,325 422,550
Gratuity 145,904 69,210

715,229 491,760
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Nine month period 
ended

December December 
31, 2016 31, 2015

 $  $ 
Dividend income  1,383,125  1,420,209 
Recovery of trade receivable previously provided  787,439  - 
Interest income  664,210  509,213 
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment  52,266  (97,660)
Sundry administrative income  10,170  68,543 
Sundry industrial estate income  4,255  4,254 
Sundry other  (356)  329 

 2,901,109  1,904,888 

25 oTheR IncoMe - neT
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Nine months period ended
December December 

31, 2016 31, 2015
 $  $ 

Not more than 1 year 313,188 214,792
Later than 1 year and not more than five years 18,000 54,000
More than five years  -  - 

331,188 268,792

FInAnce coST - neT

coMMITMenTS
Invest Saint Lucia has entered into operating lease agreements over its business premises.  The future minimum lease 
payments under these arrangements are as follows:

CONTINGENT LIABILITy
Invest Saint Lucia has been named a defendant to claims of $142,000 (2015 - $142,000) as at December 31, 2016. 
Whilst it is impossible to be certain of the outcome of any particular case or of the amount of any possible adverse 
verdict, Invest Saint Lucia believes that their defences to all these various claims are meritorious on both the law and 
the facts. Having regard to the foregoing, Invest Saint Lucia (i) does not consider it appropriate to make any provision 
in respect of any pending litigation and (ii) does not believe that the ultimate outcome of this litigation will significantly 
impair Invest Saint Lucia’s financial condition. Payments if any, arising from these claims will be recorded in the period 
that the payments are made.

27

28

Nine month period ended
December December 

31, 2016 31, 2015
 $  $ 

Interest income  8,360  24,253 
Interest expense  (156,306)  (122,628)

 (147,946)  (98,375)

z
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